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Herefardshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

The trustees who are also directors of the charity for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, present their report
with the financial statements of the charity for the vear ended 31 August 2022, The trustees have adopted the
provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable fo charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Iretand (FRS 102} {effective 1 January 2019) and the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objectives and aims

The principal object and activity of the Academy is to advance for the public benefit education in the United
Kingdom, in particular by estabtishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a school, offering a broad
range of curriculum for pupils of different abilities,

The principal object and activity of the Charitable Company is the operation of Hereford Marches Federation of
Academies to provide free education and care for pupils of different abilities between the ages of Z and 11.

The aims of the Academy during the year ended 31 August 2022 are summarised betow:

- to continue ta raise the standard of educational attainment and achievement of all pupils.

- to provide a broad and balanced curriculum, including extra-curricular activities.

- to develop students as more effective learners.
to develop the Academy sites so that it enables students to achieve their fuil potentiat.
to ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in terms of resourcing, teaching, support
and care,

- to improve the effectiveness of the Academy by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure under
continual review.

- to provide value for money for the funds expended.

- to develop greater coherence, clarity and effectiveness in school systems.

- to comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements.

- to develop the Academy's capacity to manage change, and

- to conduct the Academy's business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and
Openness.

- to manage the coromavirus outbreak in terms of Health & Safety requirements, adhering to government
guidetines re: 'Bubble’ closures and facilitating home tearning for pupils and remote working for staff.

At HMFA we aim to get the best for, and from, each child. We intend to enable each chifd to begin a lifelong love of
learning and to begin to realise their academic, creative and physical potential, and to develop positive social and
moral values. Qur Academy is a community in which children, staff and parents should be part of a happy and
caring environment.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

- To maintain Qutstanding provision at Sutten.

- To continue to strive for highest standards at Lord Scudamare, Kings Caple and St Weenards.

- To ensure the progress of alt groups of pupils in our care remains high.
To continue to develap our curricutum, To provide pupils with a broad and batanced curricuium and provide
opportunities beyond the National Curricuium, such as Forest School activities.

- To ensure the use of technology is integrated into our curricutum, especiatly to support home learning.

- Yo develop strategies which will enable pupils to catch-up on lost teaching time disrupted by Coronavirus
outbreak

- To continue to adapt School working practices to comply with Government Guidelines to ensure the safety of
staff and pupils during the Coronavirus outbreak.

- To consider the growth and development of the MAT.

Key priotities for the year for core curriculum areas are contained in the Strategic Development Plans which are
available from each school.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2027

OBJECTIVES ARD ACTIVITIES
Public benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have due regard
to the Charity Commissioner's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties.

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the trustees have carefully considered the Charity Commission's
general guidance on pubtic benefit.

ACHIEVEMENT AND PERFORMANCE
Charitable activities

Kings Caple Lord Scudamore Suiton
Pupil Achievement Outstanding Goad Outstanding
Quality of Yeaching Qutstanding Good Qutstanding
Behaviour and Safety QOutstanding Good Outstanding
Leadership and Management Outstanding Good Outstanding
St Wecnards
Pupil Achievement Qutstanding
Quality of Teaching Outstanding
Behaviour and Safety Cutstanding
Leadership and Management Qutstanding

Joint activities resumed batween the schools in the Summer Term.

The development of alt curriculum areas has beert monitored, evaluated and amended as necessary by Subject
Leaders.

The Covid-19 pandemic has created the following pricrities:

- Uperade of ICT equipment for pupils to ensure that every child has access to a device

- Implementation of Goosle Classroem as the vehicle for remote learning and to support homework and
communication between school and home,

- Appropriate |T infrastructure to ensure that children in school and those at home can access learning

- Ensuring data returns ref Covid absences/tests were recorded and submitted
Extra vigilance with regard to cteaning/hygiene and measures in place to limit spread of the virus

Senior staff have been involved in managing the performance of staff and mentoring ECTs despite the pandemic,
with new focuses addressed due to new leadership.

The SATs test results have not been published but are used for internal development anly.

A Recovery Curriculum Action Plan focused on Speech and Language with extra support provided to the EYFS pupils
as their limited vocabulary and speech development were identified as real areas of concern. Covid 19 was still
predominate throughout the Autumn and Spring Terms with Google Classroom a key tool to continuing children's
learning at home if they were well encugh to wark

Fundraising activities

There were a wide range of charitable fundraising activities despite the restrictions of lockdown. The FTA at Lord
Scudamore was reintroduced.

Key performance indicators

Throughout the pandemic, chitdren's oppertunities for extended writing was limited - this is a focus to provide
children with varied writing styles.

- The sequential development of skills and knowledge throughout all hon-core curriculum subjects.
- Clear opportunities for chitdren to revise and practice new knowledge so they know more and remember mare,
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial position

Majority of the Academy’s income is abtained from the DfE via the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of
which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DE during the year ended 31 August 2022
and the associated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Academy alsoe receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE and these are shown in the Statement of Financial
Activities as restricted income in the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by
annual depreciation charges over the useful life of the assets concerned, as defined in the Academy's accounting
policies.

At 31 August 2022 the net book value of fixed assets was £4,017,512 (2021; £4,146,933) and movements in tangible
fixed assets are shown in the notes to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing
education and the associated support services to the pupils of the Academy.

During the year ended 31 August 2022, total expenditure of £3,707,297 (2021: £3,271,691) was covered by recurrent
grant funding from the DFE. The excess of income over expenditure for the year (excluding restricted fixed asset
and pension funds) was £102,626 {2021: £139,609)

The land and buildings for Lord Scudamore School were transferred to the Academy upon conversion in June 2011,
tand and buildings for Sutton & Kings Caple and 5t Weanards Schools were transferred on a 125yr lease,

DfE land and building valuations have been provided as at 31/08/21 for Lord Scudamore at £3,715,000 and Sutton at
£2,220,000

DfE land and buitding valuations have been provided as at 31/08/20 for 5t Weonards at £445,000 and Kings Caple at
£485,000.

The Academy has taken on the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of its non-teaching staff
transferred on conversion. The deficit is incorporated within the Statement of Financial Activity with details in the
notes to the finangial statements.,

Key financial poticies are in place which reflect the reguirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, these include
HMFA Financial Regulations and and HMFA Financial Delegation Scheme which tay out the framework for financial
management, including financial responsibilities of the Board, CEO, Accounting Cfficer, Finance staff and budget
holders, as well as delegated authority for spending.

Investment policy and objectives
The Trust has an Investment Policy in place.

Due to the nature of funding, the Academy may at times hold cash balances surplus to its short-term requirements.
Trustess have autherised the transfer of funds surplus to immediate cash requirements to low risk deposit accounts
{regulated by Financial Conduct Authority), normally for a fixed term that does not exceed one year, unless there 5 a
¢lear rationale for longer-term investment that wouid benefit the Trust. No other form of investment is authorised,

Reserves policy

The Directors review the reserve levels of the Academy annually. This review encompasses the nature of income and
expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The Directors take
into consideration the future plans of the Academy, the uncertainty over future income streams and other key risks
identified during the risk review. The Academy's current tevel of reserves (total funds less the amount held in fixed
assets and restricted funds) is £680,476 {2021: £499,748), all of which is free reserves. The level of general restricted
reserves is £57,816 {2021: £148,856).

Plans for the future use of reserves is to support in-year deficit school budgets in the short term where particular
circumstances such as falling pupil numbers, long-term staff absences, removal of DfE support grants and unexpected
events {such as Covid-19 pandemic) have a detrimentafl impact. The Board of Trustees have agreed that a reasonable
minimum level of reserves equates to 1 month’s salary costs (£383,000 Aug22). Other plans for use of reserves include
IT hardware anc premises works as per the Estates Strategy 2022,
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended_31 August 2022

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Gaing concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the
going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

HMFA Beard of Trustees regularly review long term plans to ensure the future financial stability of the Trust. Action
has been taken to mitigate financial losses relating to reduced GAG funding as a result of falling pupil numbers. This
has stabilised the forecasted financial pasition of the Trust over the next 3 years. Trustees have aiso considered the
effects of Covid19 in their assessment.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Please see HMFA Strategic plan and curriculem recovery plan per the website

Core Purposes

- Ensure that all children are protected from harm; both physically and emationally.

- Provide the highest quality of education so that every child achieves their full potential, both academically as
well as in artistic and sporting endeavour.

- fnsure that vuinerable and disadvantaged children receive the support they need to achieve their full
potential.

- Ensure that children are equipped to cope with the pressures of life including effective management of social
media,

- Enabte children to make the best use of technology without allowing it to take over their lives,

Key Priorities

- Ensuring high quatity teaching and learning

- Ensure that all teachers are using Talk4Writing, Talk4Reading and Developing Reasoring in Maths.

- Ensure that assessment is 2 dialogue between teacher and child which moves learning forward.

- Provide high quality intervention in the Early Years to address speech and language issues; particutarly the
deficit in vocabulary for disadvantaged children.

- Toprovide intervention and support for older children to minimise gaps in reading and vocabulary.

Developing the creative curriculum
- Ensure that every opportunity te further enhance the already very creative curricutum is taken,
- Review the current curriculum and ensure the clear progression of skills and knowledge.

Strengthen leadership
Ensure that ail Senior Leaders have a good understanding of financial policies and procedures, and are engaged
in the setting of balanced budgets.
Develop strategic awareness for Heads of School.

- Develop the work scrutiny cycle for Trustees and Local Advisery Body Members,

- Trust supports the development of the CEO's role to allow opportunities to future proof the strategy and
growth of HMFA,

Ensure clear accountability and highly effective communication

- Ensure that Heads of School contribute to the Heads Repert as the key accountability document for Trustees
and tocal Advisory Body members.

- Ensure that progress data is available each term for all groups of children,

- Ensure that Senior Leaders meet regularly, and that communication is effective between the leadership team
and with all stakehotders.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
far the Year Ended 31 Ausust 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust was incorporated on 25th March 2011 and opened as an Academy on 1st June 2011 is a company
limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's Memorandum and Artictes of Association are
the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The company officers act as the Trustees for the charitable activities of Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies. The Charitable Company is known as HMFA.

HMFA s a charitable company and is respensible for the strategic direction of the Academies within the HMFA MAT. It
has 2 layers of governance: Members of the Trust and the Board of Trustees.

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the pericd, except as noted, are included in the Reference and
Administration Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while they are & member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may
be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to be a member,

Trustees' Indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the Academy Trust's expense to cover their liability which by
virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of trust or
breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust, provided that any such insurance shall
not extend to any claim arising from any act or omission which the Trustees knew to be a breach of trust or breach of
duty or which was commitied by the Trustees in reckless disresard to whether it was a breach of trust or breach of
duty or not and provided also that any such insurance shati not extend to the costs of any unsuccessful defence to a
criminal prosecution brought against the Trustees in their capacity as Trustees of the Academy Trust. The limit of this
indemnity is £5million.

Principal activities

The principal activity is to advance fer the public benefit by maintaining, managing and developing primary schools
and their associated nursery schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum for the development of the complete
chitd.

Recruitment and appointment of new trustees
The Academy's Governing Body (Board of Trustees} comprises the CEQ, 2 Independent Members, 3 Member Trustees
{currently 2 plus 1 vacancy) and 5 Trustees (inctuding the CEQ).

when appointing new Trustees, consideration is given to the skills and experience mix of existing Trustees in order to

ensyre that the Board has the pecessary skills set to contribute fully to the Academy's development. The Board
comprises of Trustees primarily elected by the Members.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Acadernies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MAMNAGEMENT
Organisational structure
The Board of Trustees meets ance each term as do the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee.

The Board establishes an overall framewoark for the governance of the Academy Trust and determines membership,
terms of reference and procedures of Committees and other groups. It receives reports including policies from its
Committees for ratification. It monitors the activities of the Cornmittees through the minutes of their meetings. The
Board may from time to time establish Working Groups to perform specific tasks over a limited timescale.

The HMWFA Scheme of Delegation has been developed to clarify the responsibilities and powers of Members, Trustees,
CEQ, Chair of Trustees and Local Advisory Boards in respect of key aspects of the management of the Trust and its
Academies, and to ensure compliance with legal requirements.

The Members and Board of Trustees have devslved responsibility for day to day management of the Academy to the
CEC and Senior Leadership Team (SLY). The SLT comprises of the CEO, Headteacher, Heads of School, Finance
Director, HR Directar and Company Secretary, Director of Safeguarding, Director of SEND, and Director of IT and DPO.
The SLT implement the policies iaid down by the Board of Trustees and report back to them on performance. The aim
of the leadership structure is to devolve responsibitity and encourage involvement in decision making at all levels.

CED; Alison Taylor ts the Accounting Cfficer.

The Acaderny Trust comprises four primary schools - Lord Scudamore, Sutton, Kings Caple and St Weonards. Each
school has its own Local Advisory Body who accepts reports relating to their scheol, staff and pupils. Please refer to
the MAT Scheme of Delegation for detail of key areas of responsibility.

The Trust has a subsidiary company; HMFA Enterprises Ltd.

This company facilitates the trading of services connected to the Trust and includes; Extended Day kidsciubs, Holiday
kidsctubs, Catering service, Schools Direct {Teacher training)., The Directars of HMFA Enterprises Ltd meet once a
term. They review and approve the annual budget plan, policies, pricing structure and are responsible for day-to-day
management. Strategic and staffing decisions are made in accordance with HMFA Scheme of Delegation.

Minutes of the Enterprises Board meetings are presented to the HMFA Board for comment at each of the 3 termly
meetings.

The Academy Trust has associated links with 4 other primary schools: Llangrove CE Academy, Marden Primary
Academy, Pencombe C of E Primary School and Clehonger C of E Primary Schoal.

Through the HMFA collaboration agreement alt schools benefit from the use of shared expertise, staffing, resources
ana group purchasing discounts.

Induction and training of new trustees

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend upon their existing experience but would always
include an invitation to tour the Academy and a chance {o meet staff and pupils. All Trustees are encouraged to
access the induction pack which is available on Governor Hub for reference when required. Governor Quality
Assurance days are held for Trustees and Local Advisory Body members where they visit the schools and involves work
scrutiny, talking to pupils, learning walks and observations.

Our annual review of Governance provides an opportunity for Trustees to highlight any training requirements they feel
wauld be of benefit to them, Trustees and Locat Advisory Body members are encouraged to enrol on relevant courses
to support their role,

Key management remunetation

1. Performance pay review is completed by the HWFA pay review committee, comprising 4 elected Trustees.

2. Performance Management in each school takes place on an annual cycle of review, It is undertaken by the
senior leaders, Deputy Head teachers and Head teacher.

3. Targets are related to current school key areas as well as individual targets and are linked to the new
teacher standards.

4. Staff underperforming are given clear agreed fargets with appropriate timescale for review, and a2 mentor
from the leadership team.

Trade union facility time
The multi academy trust has a 5LA in piace to cover trade union services.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Related partias

Related Party relationships are recorded on a Declaratfons of Interest Register and any additional declarations noted
at the start of each Board of Trustees Meeting,

The feliowing companies have been identified as having a Related Party relationship with HMFA Academy Trust;
Liangrove CE Academy, Marden Primary Academy, Clehonger CofE Primary Scheool, Pencombe C of E Primary School
and HMFA Enterprises Ltd.

HMFA MAT CEO; Alison Taylor is Executive Headteacher at Clehonger Coff Primary School wia a Service Level
Agreement.

Sutton Headteacher; Liz Orton is Executive Headteacher at Marden Primary Academy & Fencombe CofE Primary School
via a Service Level Agreernent.

Related Party transactions are disclosed to ESFA via DfE Sign-in portal and where applicahle requests for approval are
submitied, ESFA approved all Related Party disclosures for FY 21/22. The regulations do not currently apply to income
transactions.

Related Party Agreements are reviewed and approved by Trustees annually prior to commencement of the
service/contract.

FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Trust assesses the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to its finances,
teaching, facilities and other operational areas through the Risk Register (a working document). The Frust has
implemented a number of systems to assess and minimise those risks, through policy reviews and internal controls.
Where significant financial risk still remains, there is adequate insurance cover in place.

Lord Scudamore Academy pupil numbers are slowly increasing since the decline in 20/21. A pre-school opened at 5t
Weonards Academy in January 2022, There has been a positive respanse with é pupils attending. At present there isn't
a need for Extended day services at 5t Weonards.

Mationat pay awards for teachers and support staff are putting significant pressure on already restricted budgets. &t is
important to note that despite increased employment and premises costs the DiE funding that schools receive is not
increasing relatively in real terms. £merging new costs such as Cyber Security, GDPR, Il Health Liability and
independent scrutiny services add further strain to tight budgets.

The Trustees examine the financial heatth formally every term, reviewing performance against budgets and overall
expenditure by means of regular update reports at all Board meetings and Finance, Audit & Risk Cormmittee meetings.

At the year end, the Academy had no significant Liabilities arising from trade creditors or debtars where there would
be a significant effect on liquidity.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of ihe Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy are as follows:

Financial - the Academy has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA. In the last
year 92% of the Academy's incoming rescurces was uitimately Government funded and whilst this level is expected
to continue, there is no assurance that Government policy ar practice will remain the same or that public funding
will centinue at the same levels or on the same terms,

Financial - HMFA Board of Trustees recognises that the defined benefit scheme deficit (Local Government Pension
Scheme), which is set aut in the notes te the financial statements, represents a significant patential lability. Due to
the deficit position of the LGPS valuation November 2019, sizable lump sum deficit contributions have been imposed
en the Academy over the last few years. The latest valuation carried out in March 2022 shows a decrease in the
overall deficit position and a longer recovery period which means a significant reduction in deficit contribution
amounts payable from April 2023. The Academy wili continue to take into consideration the unceriainty of future
LGPS fund valuations.

At this point in time the Academy is able to meet the set £GPS annual contributions; however, the Board are aware
there will be revisions of Employer rates in the future. The Board has relevant skill set to inform Frustees of policy
and impact of the LGPS.

Failures in governance and/or management - the risk in this area arises from potential failure to effectively manage
the Academy's finances, internal controls, compliance with regulations and {egislation, statutory returns, etc. The
Trustees continue to review and ensure that appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these risks,

Reputational - the continuing success of the Academy is dependent on continuing to attract applicants in sufficient
numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk, Trustees ensure that pupil's success
and achievement are closely monitered and reviewed.

Opportunities - the Trustees ensure wider learning opportunities and experiences are available to all children whilst
being fully aware that smaller schools with less staff face more restrictions and limitations.

Safeguarding and child protecticn - the Trustees continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the
areas of selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health & safety
and discipline. Relevant staff receive safer recruitment training and all staff receive relevant safeguarding training,
including Prevent, and are issued with relevant documents.

Staffing - the success of the Academy is reliant on the quality of its staff and so the Trustees moniter and review
policies and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff as well a5 ensuring there is clear
succession planning.

The MAT follows the STPCD and local policy guidelines. Any significant government legislative changes to teachers
pay and cenditions will therefare have an impact.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds - HMFA opt for a bought-in internal audit service to provide independent
assurance to the board that its financial and non-financial controls and risk management procedures are operating
effectively, as required by the Academy Trust Handbook. The function of the audit & risk committee is combined
with the finance committee who direct the trust's programme of internal scrutiny, ensure risks are being addressed
appropriately and report to the Board of Trustees,
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Acadermies

Report ef the Trustees
far the Year Ended 31 August 2022

STATEMENT AS TO BISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

50 far as the trustees are aware, there is no relevant information {as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act
2006) of which the group and charitable company's auditors are unaware, and each trustee has taken all the steps that
they ought to have taken as a trustee in erder to make them aware of any audit information and to establish that the
group and charitable company's auditors are aware of that information.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Thorne Widgery Accountants, are willing to continue in office and a resolution to appoint them will be
groposed at the annual general meeting.

Trustees Report, incorpf%rating a strategic report, was approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on
Sr“:gﬂ,m,é.&fwm-{,ﬂ AV S and signed on the boards behalf by:

C M Hayes - Chair of Trustees
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Harefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies has an effective and appropriate system of control, financiat and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absalute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in BfE’s Governance Handbook and competency
framewaork for governance.

The Trust has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEQ fAccounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls
conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the
requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between HMFA and the Secretary of State
for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control,

The Trustees' consider that the Board and its Committees combined, meet adequately and regularly over the course of
the year in order ta discharge their responsibilities and have robust and effective management arrangements.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Report of the Trustees and in the
Trustees Responsibilities Statement. To mimimise the spread of Covid-19 due to focal outbreaks in schools, 2 of the 3
Board meztings were held remotely via Teams.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Meetings Out of a
Trustee Attended possible
P Box CEQ/Accounting Officer - Autumn 1 1
{resigned 31.12.21)
Alison Taytor CEO/Accounting Officer - Spring/Summer 3 3
C Hayes (Member Trustee) Chair 3 3
L Conod {Member Trustee) Vice Chair {resigned 24.11.21) 2 3
S Elwine (Member Trustee} 3 3
B Greenough {Member) 2 3
E Klein (Member) (resigned 30.06.22) 0 2
JLuna (Member) (appointed 24.11.21) 1 3
H Patterson 3 3
M Ashcroft 3 3
M Williams (resigned 31.12.21) 1 1
R J Williams 3 3

In addition to this, the Local Advisory Body of the individuatl schools meet termly,

Managing Conflicts of [nterest

The Trust follows appropriate action to ensure there is independent accountabitity and transparency in decision
making. Declarations of Inferest are shared with other Trustees via GovHub and the Register circulated and published
on the organisation's websites. Those with connections relating to a particular agenda item absent themselves from
that part of the meeting and this is minuted as such. The Trust specifies how transactions with it's subsidiary company
should be managed in the HMFA Financial Reguiations Manual which is reviewed and approved by the Board of
Trustees.

Review of Governance 2021-22

Foliowing on from last years' review of the HMFA Board constitution, we have welcomed a new Member to the HMFA
Board, Julie Lunn, Since appointing Julie, another Member has had to resign so, again, we have a vacancy for an
independent Member to bring the number of Members back to 5 in total. We are currently exploring our options and
the vacancy will be filled at the earliest opportunity.

The NGA skills audit has been sent out to hoth Members and Trustees to ensure that all infermation is updated. The
data will be collated using the NGA Matrix to highlight any gaps in the skills set across the Beard, also to highlight any
areas where training is required. It i also a useful tool when considering the skills required prior to the appointment
of new trustees,

In addition to the skills audit, we have also circulated the NGA MAT Gowvernance self-evaluation questions. The
questions are presented as a set of statements for both Members and Trustees to reflect on, to help the Trust
evaluate its effectiveness and identify areas for development. Results will be collated and presented to the Board for
discussion and to formulate an action plan to address any concerns identified within the process.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

The DfE ‘strong preference’ with regard to Governance is that an externat review of governance (ERG) is also carried
out routinely (every 3 years) as part of a wider program of self-assessment and improvement.  This is something
that we have been exploring, looking at costs, providers, scope elc,

Finance, Audit & Risk Committee - meets once a term and is respansible for monitoring, evaluating and reviewing
policy and performance in relation to financial management, compliance with regulatory reguirements and
reporting, and examining the annual budget,

From September 2020, all academies must have an Audit & Risk Committee to maintain an oversight of the Academy
Trust's financial, governance, risk management and internal control systems. HMFA have combined this with the
Finance Committee under the new title of Finance, Audit and Risk Committee.

The terms of reference of the Finance Audit & Risk committee also include responsibility for; reviewing the risks to
internal financial controls, reviewing the Risk Register annually, reviewing internal audit reports.

During the year the committee reviewed; the programme and outcomes of Internat Scrutiny, Banking services and
opening of new bank accounts, Contract Register, External Auditor service, Estates Strategy & Asset Management
Plans, Related Party SLA's, Pre-School fees, Investment Policy, DfE Benchmarking, KPI's and the comptetely revised
HMFA Financiat Regulations Manual. In addition to reviewing the draft annual accounts, proposed budget plans, pupil
number forecasts, long-term finance projections and MAT reserve balances.

It is the committee's preference to hold these meetings via Teams so that the detailed reports uploaded to Governor
Hub portal can be shared on screen without the need to print or bring along personal devices and connect to school's
networks. Also, as the meetings take place during the day seme members would fing it difficult to attend in person
due to work commitments.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Meetings Out of a
Trustee Attended possible
P Box CEQ/Accounting Officer - Autumn Term 1 1
A Taylor CEQ/Accounting Officer - Spring onwards 3 3
L Conod FAR Committee Chair 3 3
S Elwine 3 3
M Williams 1 1
C Hayes 3 3
N Jones Finance Director 3 3
D Greenough {by invitation, no voting rights) 3 3

Pay Review Committee - meets at least annually to perform all staff salary review, agree salary scales, awards &
henorarium payments, review HMFA Pay Policy,

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Meetings Out of a
Committee Member Attended possible
P Box CEQ/Accounting Officer - Autumn Term 1 1
L Conod CEOQ/ Accounting Officer - Spring onwards 1 1
S Elwine 1 1
A Taylor Headteacher 1 1
L Orton Headteacher 1 1
C Hayes 1 1
H Patterson 1 1
N Johes Finance Director 1 1
C Watking HR Cirector 1 1
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the CEQ; Alison Taylor (P.Box for Autumn term} has responsibility for ensuring that the
academy trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for
money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer's resources
received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust’s use of its resources has provided geod value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money ¢an be improved, including the use of
benchmarking data where available. The academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

Banking $ervices Review - ail HWFA linked accounts including subsidiary company
The trust's main account had remained with the same bank singe it converted toc a MAT in 2011. School Fund
accounts were held with various different high street banks which had been in place prior to joining the MAT.
Banking charges had been applied to accounts previously offering free banking. Some accounts did not have not
online banking facility. Local branches were clesing or counter services removed.

In order to streamline and ensure banking procedures, policy and management were censistent across atl bank
accounts held by the Trust, the Board carried out & tender exercise of business banking services offered by 3 main
high street banks.

The decision to open new bank accounts with Lioyds was based on cost {Lloyds offer free banking to Academy
schools), specialist education sector knowledee (Lloyds have over 70% Academy market share nationally), free
corporate card services and tink to streamlined sub=accounts for school fund accounts and subsidiary company under
the ane MAT umbrella.

An online resolution was approved in June 2022. As well as improved efficiency & internal control, the savings over
the next 5 years are estimated to be over £10,000

External Auditor Service Review

Academy Trusts should re-tender their external audit service at least every 5 years. This exercise was carried out in
Nov 2021 and the Board and its FAR committee reviewed proposals from 4 specialist acceuntancy firms in addition to
the current externat auditors; Thorne Widgery Accountancy.

Cost differences between the quotes were marginat, which reassured the Trust that fees currently being charged
were competitive, The Trust also put great value on the consideration of education sector expertise, locality and a
proven track record of excellent customer service in particular communication, suppert & advice.

The Trust appoints external auditors annually at the AGM, however due regard will be given to the cutcome of this
review where Thorne Widgery Accountancy Ltd were favourable and offered excellent value for money.

PE specialist services

Lord Scudamore had used a bought-in PE service for quite a few years and since the Covid pandemic had increased
the contracted hours as the positive impact on pupil's well-being was evident. The school had built up a good
working relationship with the sports coach and during 2022 decided to negotiate out of the contract so that they
were in a position to offer employment. Annually this will save upwards of £4,000.

Pro-active purchasing re impact of Ukraine War

Aware that the war in Ukraine was affecting the supply chain on production of IT hardware (Ukraine produces 70% of
the global supply of nean - the key raw material fin micrachips) the Trustees reviewed the [T development plan and
agreed to a bulk advance purchase of IT hardware planned for purchase the following year 22.23. This decision
meant that items could be purchased at a reasonable price from stock already held by distributors, before prices
increased significantly due to shortages.

Russia & Ukraine are also key suppliers of timber which has hugely affected the cost of paper. As well as switching
to lower cost recycled paper the Trust has ensured staff are aware of the shortages and cost increases so they are
careful in their usage and avoid wastefulness.
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Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Cleaning Contract
A tender exercise was undertaken for the cleaning contract at Sutten Primary Academy. Local companies were

invited fo quote and consideration was also given to reliability of service in particular regarding replacement of staff
in the event of absences. The new company chosen was Knightsbridge Ltd and meant a saving of circa £6,000 over
the 3 year contract period.

Staffing Review
HMFA undertake an annual review of Educational Support Staff hours taking inte consideration flexibility within

existing staff contracts, terms of employment and pupil's needs in order to ascertain whether current staffing tevels
were suitable and affordable. HMFA recognise that staffing costs contribute to 80% of total expenditure sc this is
monitored and benchmarking exercises compleied to ensure within appropriate levels. HMFA continue to cover staff
absence where possible from within existing contracted hours which has led to significant savings.

Benchmaridng
HMFA reguiarly undertake various benchmarking exercises using DfE toolkits and £5FA self-assessment tools in order

to evaluate the financial efficiency of the trust, its use of funding, pupil's attainment and the money used to achieve
it. This year Trustees received the Kreston Academies Benchmark report which provided useful data more
comparable to HMFA organisation {(includes 300 Multi Academy Trusts)

HMFA Trust regularty consider/review opportunities to self-generate income.

Procurement

Good Practice on-going scrutiny of guotes and pricing by the Finance department, ensuring best value is obtained at
all times by sourcing and suggesting alternative suppliers and alternative products where necessary, securing
discounts and group purchasing reductions. Utilising consortiums where possible to secure best price.

Bulk Biscount Purchasing
For consecutive years we secured discounts with our high value suppliers; Staffing/HR/Payroll SLA's and Stationary
providers - we estimate this {o have saved over £10,000 year on year,

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internat control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonabie and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the achievemant of charitable company policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the tikelihcod of those risks
being realised and the impact should they he realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economicaily.
The system of internal control has been in place in Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies for the peried
1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual repart and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the charitable company is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the charitabte
compary's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of
trustees.
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The Risk and Contral Framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial controt is based on a framewerk of regular management infermation
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountabitity. In
particular, it includes:

- comprehensive budgeting and monitaring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and asreed by the Board of Trustees,;

- regular reviews by the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

- setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

- delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

- identification and management risks.

The Board of Trustees complies with Academy Trust Handbook requirements for internal Audit and sourced a
bought-in internal audit service to review financial & non-financial controls and risk management procedures.

During the course of the year internal audit was conducted remotely and covered:

- Financial governance; reporting, scheme of delegation, financial planning and monitoring
- Income; review of controls and processes

- Single Central Record: recording of appropriate information relating to pre-employment

The findings were reported to the Board of Trustees. No matters of significance were identified.

Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher/CED has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internat control, During the period in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the Internal Audit Scrutiny, carried out by Juniper Education;

- the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management setf-
assessment tool

- the work of the Staff Directars within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework

- the work of the external auditor

- correspondence from ESFA e.g. FNtI/NU and ‘'minded to' letters.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the systern of interral
control by the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system in place.

g - i oy " . .
Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on %ihhwcm?ﬁ. and signed on its
behalf by:

s AL

Lnd
A Taylor - Adcounting Officer

.................................
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Statement on Resularity, Propriety and Compliance
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

As accounting officer of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies | have considered my responsibility to notify
the charitable company board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency {ESFA) of material irregudarity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the charitable company, under
the funding agreement in place between the charitable company and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of
my consideration | have had due regard te the reguirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2021.

I confirm that | and the charitable company board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the charitable company, or material non-compliance with the terms and cenditions of funding under
the charitabie company's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handboow 2021.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees
and ESFA.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Trustees' Responsibility Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

The trustees (who act as governors of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies and are also the directors of
the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and
the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency, Urited Kingdom Accaunting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} and
applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financiat year. Under company law the
trustees must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a frue and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of rescurces, including the
income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the
trustees are reguired to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business,

The trustees are responsible for keeping adegquate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and te enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps
far the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and ather controts, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on

the charitable company's website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

PG LN L Y+ S . .
Appraved by order of the members of the board of trustees on ..s.}......);mm&?%&..iﬁ.:’..?_.,. and signed on its
behalf by:

C M Hayes - Chair of Trustees
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies (the ' parent charitable
company’} and its subsidiaries {the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 August 2022 which camprise the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Activities, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has heen applied in their preparation is appticable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education
and Skills funding Agency (ESFA).

In our apinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent charitable company's affairs as at 31 August
2022 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year
then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021,

Basis for epinion

Wwe conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} {15As {UK}) and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group’s and of the parent charitable company
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRCs Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for cur opinion.

Conclusians relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Pased on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and of the parent charitable
company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Cur respensibilities and the respansibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other informationr
The trustees are respansible for the other information. The other information comprises the information inctuded in
the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with sur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing 50, consider whether the other information s materally inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent materiat misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise o a
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. 1f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Repart aof the Trustzes has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Repori of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Herefordshire Marches federation of

Academies

Matters an which we are required te report by exception

In the light of the knowiedge and understanding of the group’s and of the parent charitable company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the
Trustees.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to

you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

- the trustees were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from the reguirement to
prepare a Strategic Report or in preparing the Report of the Trustees.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the trustees (who are also the directors of the
group's and of the parent charitable company for the purposes of campany law) are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due te fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group's and of the parent
charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable
company or o cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Qur responsibilities for the avdit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individuatly or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the ecanomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, inctuding fraud is detailed below:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and reguiatery framework applicable to both the Academy itself and the
sector in which it operates. We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasenably be expected to have a
material effect on the financial statements from our sector experience and through discussion with the trustees and
other management. The most significant were identified as the Department for Education, the Education and Schools
Funding Agency, the Academies Financial Handbock 2021, the Academies Accounts Direction 2022, Companies Act
legislation and Charities Act and FRS10Z SORP legisiation.

We considered the extent of compliance with those laws and reaulations as part of our procedures on the related

financial statements. OQur audit procedures included:

- Making enquiries of management as to where they consider there to be a susceptibility to fraud and whether
they have any knowledge or suspicion of fraud;

- Obtaining an understanding ef the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-
compliance with laws and regulations;

- Assessing the design effectiveness of the controls in place to prevent and detect fraud,

- Assessing the risk of management override including identifying and testing journal entries;

- Challenging the assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates.

Whilst our audit did not identify any significant matters relating to the detection of irregularities inciuding fraud, and
despite the audit being planned and conducted in accordance with 15As (UK}, there remains an unavoidable risk that
material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected owing to inherent timitatiens of the audit,
and that by their very nature, any such instances of fraud or irregularity would likely involve collusion, fargery,
intentional misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Repart of
the Independent Auditors.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Herefordshire Marches Federation of

Academies

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006, Owr audit work has been undertazken so that we might state to the charitable company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors report and for no other purpose. To the
fuilest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitabte
company and the charitable company’s members as & body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the apinions we
have formed.

s

. L e
. [ [
A S Bl

Mrs Lisa Weaver FCCA {Senior Statutery Auditer)

for and on behalf of Thorne Widgery Accountancy Ltd
Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditars

2 Wyevale Business Park

Kings Acre

Hereford

Herefordshire

HR4 785

T o
L] ! sl o -
Date: .. i i A rrrrrei e

Note:

The maintenance and integrity of the Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies website is the responsibility of
the trustees; the work carried out by the auditors does mot invelve consideration of these matters and, accordingly,
the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they
wete initially presented on the website.
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to
Herefgrdshire Marches Federation of
Academies

and the Education and Skills Funding Agsency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement and further to the reguirements of the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we have carried out an engagement to
obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure dishbursed and income received by Herefordshire Marches
Federation of Academies during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies and the ESFA in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter. Qur work has been undertaken so that we might state to Herefordshire Marches
Federation of Acadernies and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Herefordshire
Marches Federation of Academies and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conctusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies accounting officer and the
reparting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the reguirements of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies 's
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education and the Academies Financial Handbeok, extant from 1
September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Qur responsibitities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by eur profession's ethical guidance
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in afl material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the
period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the
financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the ESFA.
We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to eobtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance epgagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not erable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Qur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust’s income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusions inctudes:

- detailed testing of a sample of items of income and expenditure to ensure appropriatety applied for the
purpose intended

- specific testing, on a sample basis, of system controls relevant to the above

- a general review of correspondence with the appropriate authorities regarding Academy governance matters
during the year

- a generat review and discussion of the Academy’s internal control procedures for establishing and maintaining
systems of control and documentation regarding these matters

This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements to the extent evidence from the conduct of that
audit supports the regularity conclusion.
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to
Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure dishursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 bas not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

e

R L U TN TN
Thorne Widgery Accountancy Ltd
Chartered Accountants

Reporting Accountant

2 Wyevale Business Park

Kings Acre

Hereford

Herefordshire

HR4 7BS
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

f.onsolidated Statement of Financial Activities

{Incorporating an Inceme and Expenditure Acgount}

for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Notes

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS

FROM

Donations and capital grants 2
Charitable activities

funding for the academy’s

educational operaticns 3
Other trading activities 4
Tota?

EXPENDITURE ON

Raising funds 5
Charitable activities

Academy's educationai

operations 6

Total 5

NET INCOME/{EXPENDITURE)
Transfers between funds 18
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Gains/ (tosses) on revatuation of
fixed assets

Actuarial gains/ (losses) on

defined benefit schemes

Net movement in funds
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

Total funds brought forward

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED
FORWARD

31.8.22 31.8.1
Restricted
Fixed Restricted
General Assetls Gaeneral Total Total
Fund Fund Fund funds funds
£ £ £ £ £
22,460 49,546 - 72,006 35,186
61,%62 - 4,410,964 4,472,928 4,386,293
395,515 - - 195,515 352,941
479,937 49,546 4,410,566 4,940,449 4,774,420
287,227 - - 287,227 235,496
11,582 183,571 4,747,068 4,942 621 4,736,998
299,209 183,571 4,747,068 5,229,848 4,972,494
180,728 {134,025) {336,102) (289,399} (198,074)
- 15,938 {(13,938) -
- - . - {563,780}
- 2,939,000 2,939,000 {292,000)
180,728 {118,087) 2,586,960 2,649,601 (1,053,854)
499,748 4,122,773 {3,087,144) 1,535,377 2,589,231
680,476 4,004,686 (500,184} 4,184,978 1,535,377

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academias {Registered number: 07578861

Lonsolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 August 2022

31.8,22 31,821
Notes £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 12 4,017,512 4,146,530
Investments 13 - -
4,017,512 4,146,930
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock 641 1,719
Debtors 14 107,684 91,367
Cash at bank and in hand 9B0,985 835,992
1,089,312 929,078
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within ore 15
year (363,846) {304,631}
MET CURRENT ASSETS 725 456 624,447
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 4,742,978 4,371,377
PENSION LIABILITY 19 (558,000) (3,236,000)
MNET ASSETS 4,184,978 1,535,377
FUND5 18
Restricted funds;
General Annual Grant 29,053 123,820
Cther GfE/ESFA Grants 18,763 -
Other restricted - 4,802
Restricted Pension Reserve {558,000) (3,236,000}
DIE/ESFA capital grants 79,952 90,412
Fixed Assets on Conversion 3,795,668 3,868,986
Fixed Assets funded by GAG/cther sources 129,086 163,375
DIE/ESFA Universal infant free school meals - 2,198
DFE/ESFA PE and sports - 12,199
DfE/ESFA Catch-up premium - 5,637
3,504,502 1,035,629
Unrestricted funds:
General fund 680,476 499,748
TOTAL FUNDS 4,184,978 1,535,377
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 3m‘§ﬁ§ﬂ€—s !Z{ﬁﬁiﬁ_ and were

signed on its behalf by:

¥
...........................................

C M Hayes - Chair of Trustees

The notes form part of these financial statements






Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies {Registered number: 07578861)

Balance Sheet
31 August 2022

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

PEMSION LIABILITY

NET ASSETS

FUNDS
Restricted funds:
General Annual Grant
Other DE/ESFA Grants
Other restricted
Restricted Pension Reserve
DfE/ESFA capital grants
Fixed Assets on Conversion
Fixed Assets funded by GAG/other sources
DE/ESFA Universal infant free school meals
DfE/ESFA PE and sports
DFE/ESFA Catch-up premium

Unrestricted funds:
General fund

TOTAL FUNDS

The financial statemgnts were approved by the Board of
LB Tl g pakas. L0222 ... and were signed on its behalf by:

C,,m.sbt'mﬁﬂ
C M Hayes - Chail"df Trustees

Notes

12
13

14

15

19

18

31.8.22 31.8.21
L f
£ 004,687 4,130,508
1 1
4,004,688 4,130,509
117,804 115,207
954,102 792 927
1,071,906 908,134
(337,526} (274,741
734,380 633,393
4,739,068 4,763,902
{558,000} (3,236,000}
4,181,068 1,527,902
29,053 123,820
28,763 -
- 4,002
(358,000} (3,236,000)
79,952 50,412
3,795,668 3,868,986
129,066 163,375
- 2,198
- 12,199
- 6,637
3,504,502 1,035,629
676,560 497,273
4 181,068 1,527,902
Trustees and authorised for issue on

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 1

Met cash provided by/{used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of tangibie fixed assets
Capital grants from DFfE/EFA

Net cash used in investing activities

{hange in cash and cash equivaients in
the reporting period

{ash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the reporting period

The notes ferm part of these financial statements
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3i.8.22

116,271

116,271

(20,823)
49,545

28,722

144,993

835,992

PR et

980,985

31.8.21

125,257

125,257

{143,506)
25,966

(117,540}

1,717
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of

Academies

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

1.

RECONCILIATION OF NET (EXPENDITURENINCOME TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net {expenditure)/income for the reporting period {as per the
Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation charges

Capital grants from DFE/ESFA

Decrease/ lincrease) in stock

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

Increase/ {decrease) in creditors

Difference between pension charge and cash cantributions

Net cash provided by/f{used in) operations

ANALYS1IS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

Net cash
Cash at bank and in hand

Tatal

The notes farm part of these financial statements
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At 1.9.41

835,992
835,992

235,992

31.8.22 31.8.21
E £
(289,399) (198,084)
150,240 159,028
(49,548) (25,966}

1,078 {105}
{16,317} (11,217)
59,215 24,591
261,000 177,000
116,271 125,257
Cash flow At 31.8.22

£ £

144,993 980,985
144,993 980,985
144,993 980,985







Herefardshire Marches Federation of

Academies

MNotes 1o the Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the financial statements

‘The financial statements of the charitable company, which is a pubtic benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared in accordance with the Charitias SORP (FRS 102) "Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard appticable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102} (effective 1 January 2019),
Financizl Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard appiicable in the UK and Republic of
treland, the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with
the exception of investments which are included at market value.

Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Group Financial Statements

The results of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies and its wholly owned subsidiary HMFA
Enterprises Ltd have been consolidated and group accounts have been presented. All transactions between the
Academy and its subsidiary have been eliminated on consolidation. A separate statement of financiat activities
and income and expenditure account for the Charity itself are not presented because the Academny has taken
advantage of the exemptions afforded by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and paragraph 3%7 of the
SORP.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to
continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of & pericd of one year from the
date of approval of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate
resources to continue in operaticnal existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The Trustees have considered the ongoing effects of Covid 19 and the current economic inflationary pressures
on their financial future and are confident there will be no significant effect on them continuing as a going
Concern.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable upder the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by defirition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost {income)} for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in the notes to the accounts, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermare a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuariat valuation performed
at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at the year end. Any
differences betwaen the figures derived from the rotl forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would
impact on the carrying amount of the pension tiability. '

Income
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the charity has entitlement to the funds,
it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably,

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any perfermance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred tncome until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs befare income is
received, the income 75 accrued.

Fage 30 continued. .,






Herefordshire Marches Federation of

Academies

MNotes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2027

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Grants
General Annual Grant is recognised in fult in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year far which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted frem income and recogrised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the bafance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expendead.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship incame provided to the charity which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable {where there are no performance-related conditions),
where the receipt is probable and can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related conditions), where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Other income
Other income including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
charity has provided the goods or services,

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. {f it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income {rom
other trading activities. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Incame from other trading
activities’ and the proceeds are reccgnised as ‘Income from other trading activities'. Where it s impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements
until they are sold. This income s recognised within tnceme from other trading activities'.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recoanised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are
made up of the tatal of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each
activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which
contribute to more than one activity and support casts which are not attributable to a single activity are
apportioned between those activities on 2 basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are
allocated an the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Raising funds
Raising funds includes alt expenditure incurred by the charity to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities, events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

Costs of charitable activities are incurred on the charity's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the charity apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Tangibie fixed assets

Assets costing £2,500 or mote are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Page 31 continued...






Herefordshire Marches Federation of

Academies

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Tangible fixed assets

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the goevernment or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use
of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities
and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line bases overs its expected useful life, as follows:

Lona Leasehold Property - 2% Straight line
Motor Vehicles - 20% Straight line
Fixtures and Fittings - 20% Straight line
Computer Equipment - 33.3% Straight line
Motor vehicles - 20% Straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not ¢harged until they
are brought into use.

Long leasehold tand and buildings are subject to a 125 year lease with the local authority. Land and buildings
were vaiued by the FSFA on conversion to academy status. Depreciation on the buildings element is includad
within expenditure in the SOFA in accordance with the above policies.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Stocks
Catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value,

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a resutt of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated retiably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will
pay to settte the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must
provide,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated
retiably,

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obtligation. Where the
effect of the time value of maney is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts,
discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased Assats
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Investments

The academy's shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, HMFA Enterprises Limited, is included in the
balance sheet at the cost of the share capitat owned less any impairment. There is no readily available market
value and the cost of valuation exceeds the benefit derived.

Page 312 continued. .






Herefardshire Marches Federation of

Academies

Notes ta the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financiat liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured
at amortised cost as detailed in the notes to the accounts. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment,

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured
at amortised cost as detailed in the notes to the accounts. Taxation and social security are not included in the
financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the
cash settlement has already taken place and there s an cbligation to deliver services rather than cash or
another financial instrument, Amounts due to charity's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value tess any
irmpairment.

Taxation
The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1, Schedule & of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received
within categaries covered by Chapter 3, Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 236 of the Taxation
of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting anmy of the charitable
cbjects of the academy at the discretion ef the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the
Department for Education where the asset acquired or created is held for & specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the Bepartment
for Education.

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme {*TP5')
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (*LGPS™). These are defined benefit schemes,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost ts & substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributicns are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS 15 an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no undertying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate.

Page 33 continued...






Herefardshire Marches Federation of

Academies

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Fnded 31 Augyst 2022

1,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

The LGFS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pensicn scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
tiabitities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet
date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the peried by the rate
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest incame on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and lesses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

The assumptions used by the actuaries in the year end LGPS pension valuation do not take account of the
current inflation rates. Atthough this would adjust the valuation, the Trustees feel this is an arbitrary exercise
which would add unnecessary additional cost in these atready financially challenging times. A full triennial
valuation was performed in 2022, the results of which will come into effect from 1 April 2023. Preliminary
results indicate that employer contributions will fall from this date.

DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

11.8.22 31.8.1
Linrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Donations 22,460 - 27,460 9,220
Grants - 49,546 49,546 29,966
22,460 49 546 72,006 35,186

The comparatives include unrestricted funds of £9,220, restricted fixed asset funds of £25,966 and restricted
funds of Enil giving a total of £35,186.

Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Capital Grants 49,546 26,966

Page 34 continued...






Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 3% August 2022

3 FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

31.8.22 31.8.21
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant(GAG) - 3,628,465 3,628,465 3,393,443
Universal infant fee school meals - 93,860 93,860 111,818
Pupil prermium - 174,606 174,606 174,378
Teachers pay . 3,001 3,001 47,529
Teachers pension . 8,481 8,481 134,300
PE and sports - 71,030 71,030 71,070
School supplimentary grant - 41,630 41,630 -
Others - 19,125 19,125 21,115
4,040,198 4,040,198 3,953,653
Other Gavernment grants
Local authority - SEN/LAC - 146,673 146,673 110,707
Local authority - Nursery education
fundings - 205,305 205,305 213,530
- 351,978 351,978 324,237
Covid-19 additional funding (non-DFfE/ESFA)
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant - - - 2,135
Covid-19 additional funding {DfE/ESFA)s
Qther DfE/ESFA Covid-19 funding - - - 11,908
Catch-up premium - 18,790 18,790 63,680
- 370,768 370,768 401,960
Other income from the academy's
educationat cperations 61,962 - 61,962 30,680
61,962 4 410,966 4 472,918 4,386,293

The comparatives inciude unrestricted funds of £30,680, restricted fixed asset funds of £nil and restricted
funds of £4,355,613 giving a total of £4,386,293.

Page 35 continued. .,






Herefordshire Marches Federatian of
Academies

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

4. OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

31.8.22 31.8.21
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funids funds
£ £ £ £
Lettings - - - -
Qther income from facilities and services 185,025 - 185,025 146,352
Staff insurance claims 17,536 - 17,536 2,405
Other 4,230 - 4,230 3,113
HMFA Enterprises Lid 188,724 - 188,724 194,071
399,515 - 395,515 352,941
All amounts included in the comparative related to unrestricted fund.
5. EXPENDITURE
31.8.22 31.8.21
Non-pay expenditure
Staff Other
casts Premises costs Tetal Total
£ t f E £
Raising funds
HMFA Enterprises Ltd 177,188 11,505 08,534 287,227 235,496
Charitable activities
Academy's educational operations
Direct costs 3,101,134 70,842 563,842 3,735,818 3,970,498
Allocated support costs 709,667 220,730 276,406 1,206,803 1,166,500
3,987,989 303,077 938 782 5,229, 848 4,972,494
Net income/ {expenditure) is stated after charging/ (crediting):
31.8.22 31.8.1
E £
Auditors' remuneration 17,588 19,181
Auditors' remuneration for non audit work 2,285 3,770
Depreciation - owned assets 150,240 159,028
Hire of plant and machinery 6,500 14,560
Operating leases 4,980 5,970
6. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
31.8.22 31.8.21
Unrestricted Restricted Total Tatal
funds funds funds funds
f £ E £
Direct casts 11,982 3,723,836 3,735,818 3,570,498
Support ¢osts - 1,206,803 1,206,803 4,166,500
11,982 4,930,639 4,942 621 4,736,998
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

MNotes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

6. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES -~ ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS - continued

31.8.22 31.8.21
Total Total
£ £

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 709,667 698,711
Depreciaticn 3,599 4,002
Technology costs 68,893 56,775
Premises costs 220,730 215,327
Legal costs - other 84,657 71,295
Other support costs 100,770 100,975
Governance costs 18,085 19,415
Total support costs 1,206,803 1,166,500

The comparatives include unrestricted funds of £119,024, restricted fixed asset funds of £189,649 and
restricted funds of £4,428,325 giving a total of £4,736,998.

7. TRUSTEES REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS
One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the

academy trust. The headteacher and ether staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principat and staff members under their contracts of emplayment.

2022 2021
P Box Headteacher & Trustee Remuneration £40,000 - £45,000 £120,000 - £125,000
(retired and resigned Er Pension
31.12.21) Contributions £0 - £5,000 £15,000 - £20,000
A Taylor Headteacher & Trustee Remuneration £85,000 - £90,000 -
Er Pension
{appointed 1.1.22) Contributions £20,000 - £25,000

Trustees’ expenses

There were no trustees’ expenses paid for the year ended 31 August 2022 nor for the year ended 31 August
2021,

8. STAFF CO5TS

Group 31.8.22 31.8.214
£ £
Wages and salaries 2,986,567 2,902,532
Secial security costs 244,433 233,95%
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 691,737 670,005
3,922,737 3,806,496
Supply teacher costs 65,252 65,628
3,987,989 3,872,124
Academy
31.8.72 31.8.21
f £
Wages and salaries 2,791,787 2,718,884
Social security costs 244,128 233,523
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 640,866 669,391
3,726,781 3,621,798
Supply teacher costs 65,252 65,628

3,792,033 3,687,426
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of

Academies

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 3% August 2072

8.

10.

STAFF COSTS - continued

The average number of persons {including senior management team) employed by the ¢haritable company
during the year was as follows:

31.8.22 31.8.21

Teachers . 36 40
Administration and support 82 34
Management 16 _ 13
Academy 134 137

Trading company 31 26
Consolidated 165 163

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs} exceeded £60,000 was:

31.8.22 31,8.21

£60,001 - £70,000 2 1
£80,001 - £90,000 1 )
£120,001 - £130,000 1 _ 1
4 2

Key management personnel

The key management personnet of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The totat amount of empleyee benefits (including employer pensien contributions and
employer national insurance cantributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the
academy trust was £1,026,509 (2{021: £918,820}.

TRUSTEES" AND OFFICERS" INSURANCE

In accordance with nermal commercial practice the Academy has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy business. The
insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 (2021: £5,000,000} on any one claim and the cost for the year ended

31 August 2022 are included within total insurance costs.

COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Restricted
Fixed Restricted
General Assets Genperal Total
Fund Fund Fund funds
£ f £ L

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM

Donations and capital grants 9,220 25,966 - 35,186
Charitable activities

Funding for the academy's educationat

operations 30,680 - 4,355,613 4,386,293
Other trading activities 352,541 - - 352, 941
Total 392,841 25,966 4,355,613 4,774,420
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10,  COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES - contimsed

Restricted
Fixed Restricted
General Assets General Total
Fund Fund Fund funds
EXPENDITURE ON
£ £ £ £
Raising funds 235,496 - - 235,496
Charitable activities
Academy's educational operations 119,024 189,649 4,418,325 4,736,998
Total 354,520 189,649 4,428,325 4,972,494
NET INCOME/{EXPENDITURE) 38,31 {163,683) (72,712) {198,074}
Transfers between funds {38,771) 124,225 (85,454} -
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/{losses} on defined benefit
schemes - - {292,000) {292,000}
Gains/{losses) on revaluation of fixed assets - {563,780 - {563,780)
Net movement in funds {450) {603,238) {450,166) (1,053,854)
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought forward 500,198 4,726,011 {2,636,978) 2,589,231
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD 499,748 4,122,773 {3,087,144) 1,538,377
1t.  CENTRAL SERYICES
The academy trust are purchasing central services and recharging to its academies during the year;
-1IT
- Property Management
- Legal and Professional Services
- Marketing
- Administration
The trust charges for these services on a individual basis per expenses.
Most are split based on the following:
Lord Scudamore Primary Academy T0%
Sutton Primary Academy 20%
Kings Capte Academy 6%
St Weonards 4%
The actual armounts charged during the year were as follows:
31.8.22 3.8. 21
£000's £000'
Lord Scudamore Primary Academy 36 31
Sutton Primary Academy 13 14
Kings Caple Academy 7 8
St Weonards 7 8
63 61
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12,  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixtures
Freehold Long and
ACADEMY property teasehold fittings
f £ L

COST

At 1 September 2021 2,043,467 2,571,675 796,114

Additions - - 20,823

At 31 August 2022 2,043,467 %,571,675 816,937

DEPRECIATION

At 1 September 2021 284,769 365,622 701,389

Charge for year 29,402 41,438 34,468

At 31 August 2022 314,171 407 060 735,857

NET BOOK VALLE

At 31 August 2022 1,729,296 2,164,615 81,080

At 31 August 2021 1,758,698 2,206,053 94,735

Maotor Computer
vehicles equipment Totals
£ £ £

COosT

At 1 September 2021 70,176 347,437 5,828,869

Additions - - 20,823

At 31 August 2022 70,176 347 437 5,849,692

CEPRECIATION

At 1 September 2021 61,512 235,069 1,698,361

Charge for year 3,599 37,337 146,644

At 31 August 2022 65,511 322,406 1,845,005

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 August 2072 4,665 25,031 4,004,687

At 31 August 2071 8,664 62,368 4,130,508

Inctuded in cost or valuation of freehold and leasehold land and buildings if land of £1,073,057 (2021:
£1,573,057) which is not depreciated.
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12.  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - continued

GROUP
COST
At 1 September 2021
Additions
At 31 August 2022
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2021
Charge for year

At 31 August 2022

NET BOOK YALUE
At 31 August 2022

At 31 August 2021

COST

At 1 September 2021
Additions

At 31 August 2022
DEPRECIATION

At 1 Septetnber 2021
Charge for year

At 31 August 2022

NEY BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2022

At 3t August 2021

Included in cost or valuation of freehold and leasehold land and buildings if

£1,073,057) which is not depreciated.

Page 41

Fixtures
Freehotd Long and
property teasehold fittings
£ £ £
2,043,467 2,571,675 798,316
- - 20,823
2,043,467 2,571,675 819,139
284,769 365,622 703,59
29,402 41,438 34 468
314,471 407,06C 738,059
1,729,296 2,164,615 81,080
1,758,698 2,206,053 94,725
Motor Computer
vehicles equipment Totals
£ £ £
BS,071 353,097 5,854,026
- - 20,823
88,071 353,097 5,875,449
63,003 290,711 1,707,696
7,578 37,3595 150,241
70,581 328,066 1,857,937
17,490 25,031 4,017,517
25,068 62,386 4,146,930

tand of £1,073,057 (2021
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13.

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Shares in
group
undertakings
£

MARKET VALUE

At 1 September 2021 and 31 August 2022 1

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 August 2021 and 31 August 2022 1

There were ng investmeant assets outside the LK,

The company's investments at the balance sheet date in the share capital of companies include the following:

HMFA Enterprises Limited
Registered office: Lord Scudamore Academy, Friars Street, Hereford, HR4 DAS
Nature of business: Catering, extended school services, teaching school

%
Class of share: holding
Ordinary 100
31.8.22 3isn
£ £
Aggregate capital and reserves 3,911 7,476
Profit for the year 7,553 7,783

The Academy's shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, HMFA Enterprises Limited (company number
09242303) is included in the balance sheet at the cost of the share capital owned. There is no readily
available market value and the cost of valuation exceeds the benefit derived.

The company covenants its taxable profits to Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies [HMFA). A
summary of trading results is shown below. Audited accounts are filed with the Registrar of Cornpanies. This
summary includes transactions with HMFA which have been eliminated on consolidation.

31.8.22 31.8.1
£ E

Turnover 319,694 258,991
Costs of sales (2,132) (2,516}
Gross Profit 317,562 256,475
Administrative expenses (311,438) {261,284)
Other income 1,429 12,592
Net profit / {loss) for the year 7,553 7,783
Profits transferred to academy 11,118 -
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14.

15.

DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Group
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Trade debtors 15,957 6,591
Amounts owed by group undertakings - -
VAT 22 481 15,875
Prepayments and accrued income 69,246 58,901

Academy
31.8.22 LYY
£ £
11,634 6,391
14,763 253,647
28,840 26,123
62,565 56,846

107,684 91,367

117,804 115,207

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Group
31.8.22 s8N
£ £
Trade creditors 80,890 57,664
Sacial Security and other taxes h1,834 56,216
Other creditors 73,080 72,780
Peferred income 86,599 85,029
Accrued expensas 68,393 32,942

Academy
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
80,567 54,598

51,196 54,328
75,080 72,780
77,024 72,497
53,659 20,538

363,846 304,631

337,526 274,741

DEFERRED INCOME

Academy

Deferred Income at 1 Septemher
Rescurces deferred in the year
Amounts released from previcus years

Deferred Income at 31 August

Group

Deferred Income at 1 September
Resources deferred in the year
Amounts released from previous years

Deferred Income at 31 August

Peferred income is made up of the following balances:

31.8.22 31.8.21
Academy
£55,697 £65,228 Universal Infant Free School Meats Revenue Income
£20,417 £6,673 LA authority grant
£910 £596 School meal
£77,024 £72,4%7
Group
£9,576 £12,532 Children's club incame
£86,599 £85,02¢9
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31.8.22 31821
L 3
72,497 75,567
77,024 72,497
(72,497) {75,567)
77,024 72,497
31.8.22 31.8.1
£ £
85,029 97.724
86,599 85,029
(85,029 (97,724)
86,599 85,029
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16.  MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the campany in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted befare they cease to be
a member.

17.  ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

31.8.22
Restricted
Fixed Restricted
General Assets General Total
Fund Fund Fund funds
£ t £ £
Fixed assets 12,826 4,004,686 - 4,017,512
Investinents - - - .
Current assets 697,628 5,121 386,563 1,089,312
Current liabilities (29.978) (9,121) {328,747 {363,846)
Pension Liability - - {558,000} (558, 000)
680,476 4,004,686 (500,184) 4,184,978
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
31.8.1
Restricted
Fixed Restricted
General Assets General Total
Fund Fund Fund funds
£ £ E £
Fixed assets 16,422 4,130,508 - 4,146,930
Investments - - - -
Current assets 513,812 25,865 389,401 929,078
Current liabilities (30,486) {33,600} {240,543) (304,631)
Pension liability - - (3,236,000} {3,236,000)
499,748 4,132,773 {3,087,144) 1,535,377
18,  MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
Net Transfers
movemnent hetween At
At 1.9.21 in funds funds 31.8.22
E £ E E
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant 123,820 {78,829} {15,938) 29,083
Other DFE/ESFA Grants - 28,763 - 28,763
Other restricted 4,002 {4,002) - -
Restricted Pension Reserve {3,236,000) 2,678,000 - (058,000}
BIE/ESFA capital grants 90,412 {24,615) 14,155 79,952
Fixed Assets on Conversion 3,868,986 (73,318) - 3,795,668
Fixed Assets funded by GAG/other sources 163,375 (35,0%2) 1,783 129,066
DIE/ESFA Universal infant free school
meals 2,198 {2,198) - -
DfE/ESFA PE and sports 12,199 (12,199 - -
DfE/ESFA Other covid-19 funding 6,637 (6,637) -
1,035,629 2,468,873 - 3,504,502
Unrestricted fund
General fund 499,748 180,728 - 680,476
TOTAL FUNDS 1,535,377 2,649 601 - 4,184,978
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18.

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as foliows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement
Fesources expended losses in funds
f £ £ £

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant 3,628,468 {3,707,297) - {78,829}
Other DFE/ESFA Grants 79,545 {50,782) - 28,763
Other restricted 351,976 (355,978) - (4,002)
Restricted Pension Reserve - (261,000) 2,939,000 2,678,000
DFE/ESFA capital grants 45 546 (74,161) - (24,615)
Fixed Assets on Canversion - {73,318 - (72,318}
Fixed Assets funded by GAG/other sources - {36,092) - (36,092)
BfE/ESFA Universal infant free schoot
meals 93,860 {26,058) - (2,198)
BfE/ESFA Pupil premium 174,605 {174,605} - -
DfE/ESFA Teachers' pay 3,601 {3,001} - -
DE/ESFA Teachers' pension B,481 {8,431} - .
DfE/ESFA PE and sports 71,030 {83,229) - (12,199)
DfE/ESFA Other covid-192 funding - 6,637) - {6,637}

4,460,512 (4,930,632} 2,939,000 2,468,873

Unrestricted fund
General fund 479,937 {299,209 - 180,728

TOTAL FUNDS 4,940,449 (5,229,848} 2,939,000 2,649 601

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be appiied are as follows:

Restricted Generat Funds
Generat Annual Grant - Income from the ESFA which is to be used for the normatl running costs of the Academy,
including education and support costs.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2022,

Other DfE/ESFA Grants - Other grant income from the ESFA, which are used for the purposes intended.

Gther Restricted - This fund includes income from iocal autherity grants and any other sources of restricted
income,

Restricted Pension Fund
Pension reserve - This represents the Academy's share of the assets and liabilities in the Local Government
Pension Scheme.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds
DFE/ESFA Capital Grants - These funds were received for direct expenditure on fixed asset projects. The
balance at the year-end represents the NBV of assets and any unspent grant amounts.

Fixed Assets on Conversion - This represents the buildings and equipment denated te the schaol from the Local
Authority on conversion to an Academy.

Fixed Assets funded by GAG - This represants capitat expenditure that has been paid out of General Grant
Income.

Unrestricted Funds

Are all those income and expenses for general use in the Academy.
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18.

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Camparatives for movement in funds

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant

Other restricted

Restricted Pension Reserve

DfEJESFA capital grants

Fixed Assets on Conversion

Fixed Assets funded by GAG/other sources
Fixed Assets funded by local authority
DHE/ESFA Universal infant free school
meals

DfE/ESFA PE and sports

DfE/ESFA Catch-up premium

Unrestricted fund
Genearal fund

TOTAL FUNDS

Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant

Other DFE/ESFA Grants

Other restricted

Restricted Pension Reserve

DfE/ESFA capital grants

Fixed Assets on Conversion

Fixed Assets funded by GAG/other sources
Fixed Assets funded by local authority
DEE/ESFA Universal infant free school
meals

GfE/ESFA Pupil prermium

DfE/ESFA Teachers pay

DfE/ESFA Teachers' pension

DfE/ESFA PE and sports

DfE/ESFA Other covid-1% funding
Coronavirus job retention scheme grant
DfE/ESFA Catch-up premium

Unrestricted fund
General fund

TOTAL FUNDS

Net Transfers
movement between At
At 1,9.20 in funds funds 31.8.21
E £ £ 3
7,098 121,751 {5,029) 123,820
92,856 {44,640) (44,214) 4 002
(2,767,000} (469,000} - (3,236,000)
130,404 {45,021} 5,029 90,412
4,506,086 (637,300} - 3,868,986
80,954 (36,775} 119,196 163,375
8,567 {8,567) - -
12,1923 {9,95%) - 2,198
17,915 {5,716) - 12,199
- 47,848 {36,211) 6,637
2,089,033 (1,092,175} 38,771 1,035,625
500,198 38,31 {38,771} 499,748
2,589,231 {1,053,854) - 1,535,377
incoming Resources Gains and Movement
FEesOUrces expended losses in funds
£ £ £ £
3,393,442 (3,271,691) - 121,751
21,115 (21,115 - -
374,239 (368,879) - {44,640}
- (177,500) {292,000) {469,000}
25,966 (70,987) - {45,021}
- {73,320) {563,750} {637,100)
- {36,775) - (36,775)
- (8,567) (8,567)
114,818 {121,773} - (9,95%)
174,378 (174,378) - -
47,529 {47,529) - -
134,300 {134,300} - -
71,070 {76,786 - {5,716}
11,908 (11,908) - -
2,135 {2,135 - -
63,679 (20,831} - 42 848
4,381,579 (4,617,974) {855,780) (1,092,175)
392,841 {354,520} - 38,321
4,774,420 (4,972,494) {855,780} (1,053,856
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18.

MOYEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Total funds analysed by academy:

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows:

Lord Scudamgre Academy
Sutton Primary Academy
Kings Caple Academy

5t Weenards Academy

Total before fixed assets and pension reserve

Restricted Fixed Asset Fund
Pension reserve

Academy

Reserves of the subsidiary

Consolidated

31.8.22 31.8.21
3 £
833,548 695,396
(68,410} {75,177)
(105,908) {58,809)
75,152 79,719
734,382 641,129
4,004,686 4,122,773
(558,000 __ {3,236,000)
4,181,068 1,527,902
3,910 7,475
4184,978 1,535,377

Sutton Primary Academy is carrying a net deficit of £68,410 on these funds. The trust is taking the following

action to return the academy to surplus:

- Careful budget monitoring and review of ongoing salary and other costs for the future.

Kings Caple Acaderny is carrying a net deficit of £105,908 on these funds. The trust is taking the following

action Lo return the academy to surplus:

- Careful budget monitoring and review of ongoing costs and other costs for the future,

Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

31.8.27 21.8.21
Teaching Other  Educaticonal Other Total Total
And Support Supplies Costs
Educational Staff {excluding)
Support Costs Depreciation
Staff
Costs
£ £ £ £ f £
Lord Scudamore 1,993,269 503,334 22,173 515,040 3,033,816 2,996,708
Academy
Sutton Primary 664,444 108,916 7,416 246,650 1,027,426 946,068
Academy
Kings Caple 259,755 96,358 2,615 134,436 453 164 366,625
Academy
S5t Weonards 178,164 27,795 6,722 112,237 324,418 307,261
Academy
3,005,632 696,403 38,426 1,003,363 4,838,824 4,616,162
2021 3,013,019 674,407 49,310 879,416 4,616,162

Transfers between funds

A transfer between general restricted and restricted fixed asset funds has been made during the year for fixed

assets which have been funded by revenue funds.
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19

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The charity's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and
Wailes (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-
teaching staff, which s managed by Worcestershire Country Council., Both are multi-employer defined
benefit schemes,

The latest actuarial valuation of the TP5 related to the pericd ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS to the
period ended 31 March 2019,

Contributions amounting to £74,92%9 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 {2021 - £72,691} and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' pension scheme

The Feachers' Pension Scheme {TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the eption to opt-cut of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS s an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited te the Exchequer, Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the teachers’ pension scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a farmal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions {Yaluations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
schemne valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The
valuation repert was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the
valuation and subsequent censuitation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including & 0.08% administration levy)

- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets {estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional
past service deficit of £22,000 milltan

- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPl. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return
including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be impiemented from 1 April 2024,
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the peried amounted to £406,855 (2021 - £384,398).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The charity
has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The charity
has set out abave the infermation available on the scheme.

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £344,464 (2021 - £344,890), of
which employers contributions totalled £59,832 {2021 - £284,975). and employees’ contributions totalled
£284,632 (2021 - £59,915), The agreed contributicn rates for future years are 18.20 per cent for employers
and 12.50 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pensian Scheme tiabilities would be met
by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

As the scheme is in deficit, the academy has entered into an agreement with the trustees to make additicnal
contributions in additional to normal funding levels.
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19.

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued

The rates payable over a three year period will be the Future Service Rate of 18.2% of payroll plus phased
lump sum deficit contributions starting at £99,500 for the yvear 2020/21 increasing by approximately 4% per
annum, The rate payable from 1 April 2023 will be further revised following the valuation of the Pension Fund
which will take place on 31 March 2022,

The current estimated recovery period is 5 years.

The assumptions used by the actuaries in the year end LGPS pension valuation do not take account of the
current inflation rates. Although this would adjust the valuation, the Trustees feel this is an arbitrary
exercise which would add unnecessary additionat cost in these already financially chatlenging times. A full
triennial valuation was performed in 2022, the results of whick will come into effect from 1 April 2023,
Preliminary results indicate that emptoyer contributions will fall from this date.

The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:
Defined benefit
pensicn plans

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Present value of funded obligations {4,231,000) {6,771,000)
Fair value of ptan assets 3,693,000 3,535,000

{558,000) (3,236,000)
Present value of unfunded obligations - -

Deficit (258,000} (3,236,000)

Het Liability (358,000) (3,236,000

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.22 31.8.21
E £

Current service cost 490,000 411,000
Net interest from net defined benefit
asset/liability 52,000 47,000
Past service cost - -
Administration expenses 4,000 4,000

546,000 462 000
Actual return on plan assets {83,000} 523,000

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Opening defined benefit ohligation 6,771,000 5,450,000
Current service cost 490,000 411,000
Contributions by scheme participants 60,000 60,000
Interest cost 114,000 98,000
Actuarial losses/(gains) (3,084,000) 764,000
Benefits paid {100,000) {12,000

4,251,000 6,771,000
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19, PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - centinued
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit
penstan plans

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ f
Opening fair vatue of scheme assets 3,535,000 2,683,000
Contributians by employer 285,000 285,000
Contributions by scheme participants 60,000 60,000
Expected return 62,000 51,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) {145,000) 472,000
Benefits paid (100,000) {12,000) .
Administration expenses 14,000) (4,000)

3,693,000 3,535,000

The amounts recognised in other recognised gains and losses are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.12 3.8
£ £
Actuarial gains/ (losses) 2,939,000 {292,000)
2,939,000 (292,000}

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.22 3ten
Equities 73.40% 83.20%
Other Bonds 2.70% -
Cash/liquidity 1.80% 7.50%
Other 13.80% 9.80%
Property 8.30% 4.40%

100.00% 100.00%

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

31.8.22 31.8.21
Discount rate 4,30% 1,70%
Future salary increases 4.30% 4.30%
Future pension increases 2.90% 2.90%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.80% 2.80%
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19.  PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued

The current mortatity assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today

Mates 22.6 2.7
Females 25 25.1
Retiring in 20 years

Males 24.1 24.4
Ferales 27 27.1

Sensitivity analysis

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ E
Discount rate +0.1% {95,000} (152,000}
Discount rate -0.1% 97,000 155,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase 85,000 212,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease {83,000} {206,000)
CPl rate +0. 1% 93,000 155,000
CPIl rate -0.1% (96.,000) {132,000)
20.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no contingent liabilities at the year end.
21, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
31.8.22 31.8.1
£ £

Centracted but not provided for in the financial statements - -

22, LONG-TERM COMMITMENTS, INCLUDING OPERATING LEASES

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

31.8.22 31.8.2%

£ £
Within one year 5,747 5,903
Between one and five years 7,184 11,995
12,931 17,898
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23.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Owing to the nature of the charitable company and the compasition of the board of trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest, The following retated party transactions took place in the financial period.
HMFA Enterprises Ltd - wholly owned subsidiary of Hereford Marches Federation of Acadermnies(HMFA)
During the year HMFA made payments to HMFA Enterprises of £115,456 {2021: £66,427) for supply of catering
services and £17,135 {2021: £11,301) for the recharge of costs. Income was received from HMFA Enterprises
Ltd of £4,000 (2021: £4,000} for rental of premises and £26,78% (2021: £24,849) in relation to recharged
costs.
At the year end £14,765 (2023: £25,647 due from} was due from HMFA Enterprises Ltd.
The catering SLA with HMFA Enterprises Ltd commenced on 1 March 2019 and therefore was not required to
be disclosed to the ESFA under the Academies Financial Handbook regulations for 2018/19.
HMFA Enterprises Ltd covenanted £1%,118 (2020: £nil} of its profits to HMFA, all of which was due to the
academy &t the year end.
Transactions with wider federation academies/schools
During the year transactions have been made between Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies and
academies/school included within its wider federation, All these transactions related to recharge of
expenditure across the federation.
Income Expenditure Balance outstanding
at year end
Canon Pyon CE Academy ENil £Nil ENil
(2021: £27,608) (2021: ENil) {2021: £500)
Liangrove CE Academy £23,468 £Nil £2,039
{2021: £31,167} {2021 ENil) {2021: £2,005)
Marden Primary Academy £34,981 £Nil £1,760
(2021: £9,399) (2021: £25,002) {2021: £792)
Pencombe C of E Primary School £39,68% ENil 12,046
{2021: £10,087) {2021: ENil) {2021: £B56)
{lehongar € of E Primary School £33,308 ENil £4814
{2021: £28,434) {2021; ENil) {2021 £423)
All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the
Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 Aprif 2019 and
obtaining their approval where required, and with the charitable company’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures retating to connected and related party transactions.
24,  ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

Due to the nature of entity, there is no overall controtling party.
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